&7, JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE
=W DEVELPOPMENT PVT. LTD.

Regd. Office: JSW Centre,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra(Eas{))
Mumbai — 400 051.

Phone  : 022 4286 1000

Fax 1 022 4286 3000

-CIN: U45203MH2007PTC177168

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
JSW Jaigarh Infrastructure Development Private Limited will be held on Friday, the September 29, 2017 at
02.00 p.m. at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) Mumbai - 400 051 to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint the Director in place of Mr. Sudip Mishra {holding DIN: 03428213), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To ratify the appointment of M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration
Number 109574W) as Auditors of the Company and their remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the first proviso to section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the first proviso to Rule 3(7) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time
to time, the appointment of M/s Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants Mumbai (Firm Registration
Number 109574W), as the Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the
10th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 12th Annual General Meeting, on such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company”

By order of the Board of Directors
JSW Jaigarh Infrastructure Development,Private Limited. ,

Ri*€sh Udeshi
Place: Mumbai Director
Dated : May 12, 2017 {06793079)
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NOTES:
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11.

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of special business under item no. 4 set out above
with reasons proposing the Resolution as stated in the Notice is annexed hereto

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING AND 1S ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY.

Shareholders / Proxies should bring thelr attendance skip duly filled in for attending the meeting.

Copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders are requested to bring their copies to the meeting.
Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the meeting.
In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder whe is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

Members who hold Shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio number in the attendance slip for attending the meeting to facilitate
Identification of membership at the meeting.

The instrument{s) appointing the Proxy, if any, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours before
the commencement of the Meeting and in default, the instrument of Proxy shall be treated as invalid. Proxies shail not have any right to speak at the

Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, partnership firms, etc. must be supported by appropriate resolutionfauthority,

as applicable, be issued by the Shareholder organization.

Shareholders are requested to intimate the Company at its registered office, immediately of any change in their mailing address or email address in
respect of equity shares held, .

Shareholders desirous of having any Information regarding Accounts are requested to address their queries to the Accounts Officer at the Registered
Office of the Company at least seven days before the date of the Annual General Meeting, so that the requisite information can be made available at
the Annual General Meeting.

All documents referred to In the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
on all working days if the Company, during office hours, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.



Director’s Report

To the Members of
JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Tenth Annual Report together with the Standalone
Audited Statement of Financial Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017 .

1. Principal Activities, Business Review & Finance

The Company is in the process of developing modern infrastructure like Container Freight
Station, Container Rail Terminal, Industrial Cluster Development, Road, Rail and other
logistics support and storage facilities in and around Jaigarh for facilitating movement of
Cargo. It has acquired strategic patches of land for development of Container Freight Station
and FTWZ in near future. During the year the company had loss of Rs. 23.76 lakhs.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification No. G.S.R. 742(E) dated 27th July, 2016
notified the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2016 (“Rules”) as per which it has
been provided that a company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements
if its holding company files consolidated financial statements with the Registrar which are
in compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards. As JSW Infrastructure Limited,
holding company of the Company, files consolidated financial statements with the Registrar,
the Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements as per the said
Rules.
2. Transfer to Reserves

The Company for the year under review has no profit hence there is no transfer to General
Reserve,

3. - Dividend

Your Directors have deemed it prudent not to recommend any dividend on equity shares
for the year ended March 31, 2017, in order to conserve the resources for future growth.

3. Change in Capital Structure

Share Capital

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued further share capital in
any mode. The authorised and paid up share capital of the Company stands at Rs.1 crore

4, Report on Performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies

South West Port Limited (SWPL) is a SPV formed for the purpose of development of port
business and activities pertaining to port services at Mormugao, Goa. Your Company holds
23.81% of the paid up share capital of SWPL. The report on performance of SWPL {associate
company) is annexed as Annexure A to this report.

5. Deposits

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of
provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”} read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the details
relating to deposits as also requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not
in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.
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11.

12,

Material Changes and Commitments

In terms of Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, except as disclosed elsewhere in
this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s
financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and
date of this report.

Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunal

No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact
on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Securities

There being no loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided by

the Company during the period under review,

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length
basis and hence provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The details of transactions / contracts / arrangements entered by the Company with related
parties are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Disclosure under Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, there were no special resolution passed pursuant to the
provisions of Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence no information as
required pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

Board of Directors

There were no changes in the Directorship of the Company during the year.

Disclosures related to Board, Committees and Policies, if any.

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors compriséd of the following members:

Name of Director Designation
Mr. Sudip Mishra Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ritesh Udeshi Non-Executive Director

The Board of Directors met four times during the financial year ended March 31, 2017 in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
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15,

The dates on which the Board of Directors met during the financial year under review are
as under:

Sr. No Date of Board Meeting
1. April 26, 2016
2. August 19, 2016
3, December 15, 2016
4, March 30, 2017

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (5} of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(a) that in preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

(c) thatthe directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year under review, on a
‘going concern’ basis

{e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Auditars

The observations made by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017 read with the explanatory notes therein are self-explanatory and therefore,
do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the Company, have heen
appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting dated held on
September 29, 2015 until the conclusion of 12th Annual general Meeting and require to be
ratified at every Annual General Meeting of the Company. They have confirmed their
eligibility to the effect that their appointment would be within the prescribed limits under
the Act and that they are not disqualified for the continuance of their appointment.

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3}(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the
Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 made under the provisions of
Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure B which forms part of this Report.



16. Particulars regarding sexual harassment of women at workplace
During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to The Sexual Harassment
of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
17. Risk Management Policy
Your Company has not commenced any of its activities, hence there is no risk management
policy formulated at this stage.
18. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Innovation and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo
The Company does not have any manufacturing operations and technology absorption. The
Foreign Exchange earnings and outflow of the Company under review amounted to " Nil.
19.  Appreciation and Acknowledgement
Your directors would like to express their appreciation for the co-operation and assistance
received from banks and the shareholders.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai Sudip Mishra Ritesh Udeshi
. Dated : May 12, 2017 Director Director

(DIN:03428213) (DIN: 06793079)
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L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

ANNEXURE B

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on March 31, 2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companles {Management and Adminisirallon) Rules, 2014]

CIN

Reglslral!én Date

o | U45203MH2007PTC177168
: | December 31, 2007

Name of the Company

¢ | JSW Jaigorh Infrastructure Development Private Limited

Category / Sub-Calegory of
Company

the | :

Private Limited

contact detalls

Address of the Registered office and

ISW Cenire, Bandra Kura Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai — 40005)

Whether listed company

No

Name, Address and Contact details
Registrar and Transfer Agent, If any:

of NA

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the fotal turnover of the company shall be stated. -

8Ll Name oand Descrlpilon Vot . maln | NIC Code of the produci/service .o 2| '%:to tofal 1urnover
:.:'Nq. products/sewices s s s e T T e : ofthe compqny '
1 Port Serwces . 501 - Sed and coastal water tronéporf 100%
1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
- 3r,%.] Name and address oflhe 3 CIN I GEN ‘Holding /. subsidiary / % of shares 'Applthb]e
“No.:{ "Company . : = -associate it “/held | ‘section:
1 Souln West Por1 leued U452036A1 997?LC002369 Associole Compony 23.81 Section 2(6)
2. JSW Infrastructure Limited U45200MH2006PLC161268 | Holding Company 1CC.00 Section 2(46)
v, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup us percentage of Tolal Equl
. Category-wise Share Heldlng:
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year %  Change
Shareholders during the
year
Demal Physical Total Ta of | Demal Physlcal Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A, Promoters
{1} Indian
a)individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
b} Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
¢) State Govi{s) - - - - - - - - .
d) Bodles Corp. - 10,00.000 10,00,000 100 - 10,00,000 10,00.000 100 -
e) Banks / Fl - - - - - - - - -
f} Any other {Trust) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total{A)(1): - 10,00,6C0 10,00,000 100 - 10,00,000 10.00,0C0 100 -
{2) Forelgn
q) NRIs - - - - - - - - - -
Individuals
b} Other - - - - - - - - - -
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / Fl - - - - - - . - -

e) Any other - -




it

Sub-total (A)(2):

Tolal shareholding
of Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

10.00.000

10,060,000

10,00,000

10,00,0C0

8. Public
Shareholding

{1} Instilutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢} Centrai Govi

d) State Govi(s)

e)Venture Capital
Funds

f)insurance
Compuanies

g) Flls

h)Foreign Venture
Capltal Funds

1} Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):

(2)Non-inslitutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) indian

li) Overseas

b) Individuals

)

shareholders
holding
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

Individual

nominal

i)

shareholders
holding
share capital in
excess of Rs 1lakh

Individual

nominal

¢) Others (Trust)

Sub-total(B)(2):

Tolal
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1) +{(B}(2)

Public

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

10,00,000

10,00,000

100

10,00,000

10,00,000 100

Nofes: 1) Bodies Corporafe under the head “Promoter” holds shares along with its nominee.

SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

S1. Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. Name
No. of | % of total | % of Shares | No. of | % of lolal | % of Shares | % change in
Shares Shares  of | Fledged/ Shares Shares  of | Pledged / | shareholding
the encumbered the encumbered | during the
Company o total shares Company to fotal | year
shares
1 JSW Infrastructure | 10,00,000 100 - 10,00,000 100 - -
Limited
Total 10,00,000 100 - 10,00,000 100 - -




ili,

iv.

V.

CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE):

sl.

Name of the Sharehotder

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the

No. year
No. of shares % of total shares of § No. of shares % of total shares
the Company of the Company
1. JSW Infrastructure Limited
At the beginning of the year 10,00,000 i00 10,00.000 100
Purchase/Transfer during the year - - - -
At the End of the year 10,00,000 100 10,00,000 100

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

sk
No.

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beglnning of the year

year

Cumulative Shareholding during

the

No. of shares

% of total shares of
the Company

No. of shares

% of fotal shares of
the Company

Al the beginning of the year

Purchase/Transfer with the Company

At the End of the year { or on the dale of -

separation, if separated during the year)

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

sk
No.

Sharehelding at the beginning of the year

Cumulalive Shareholding during the year

for each of the Directors and KMP

No. of shares

% of tolal shares of
the Company

No. of shares

% of total shares of
the Company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shoreholding  during  the  year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease [e.g. clotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity elc)

At the End of the year

V.

INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebiednass of the Company including interest oulstanding/accrued but not due for payment,

Secured Loans
excluding
deposlts

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Tolal
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
fhe financial year

i)

Prineipal Amount

30%.68.784

309.68,784

i) Interest due bul not paid

iil} Interest accrued bul not due

Total (i+ii+ll)

309,468,784

309.68,784

Change In indebtedness duiing
the financlal year

Addition

31,246,978

31.26,978

Reduction

Net Change

31,246,978

31,26,978

Indebtedness atl
financlal year

the end of ihe

i) Principal Amount

340,95,763

340,925,763

i) Interest due but not paid

ill) Interest accrued but not due

Total {I+i+ii)

340.95.763

340,295,763




Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL;
A, Remvuneratfon to Managing Director, Whole-fime Direclors and/or Manager:

No remuneration being paid to the Directors.

B. Remuneralion to Cther Directors;
No remuneration and sitling fees being paid to the Directors.

C. Remuneration lo Key Managerlal Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
There is no Koy Managerial Personnel appointed in the Company.

Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no Penalties/ Punishment/ Compounding of Offences during the year ended March 31, 2017,



38, Bombay Mutual Building. Tel,  :+91(22) 2262 3000
2 Floor, Dr. P, N. Road, Fort, Email : contact@shahgupta.com
Mumbai - 400 (301, Web : www.shahgupta.com

Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the IND AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statemenis of JSW JAIGARH
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”}, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
vear then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial contiol relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principtes generally accepted
in India including the IND AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2017, and its
loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), Issued by the Central

~Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

*Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
{2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheef, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
Maich, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting the
Company and operative effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” to this report; Our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy
and operative effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations having impacts on its financial position.

iil. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31
March, 2017 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ill. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

S
3
!




iv. As mentioned in Note 20 of the financial statements, the disclosure requirement of
specified bank notes as envisaged in notification G.S.R 308(E) dated 30t March, 2017 is
not applicable to the Company.

for SHAH GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

It

Naresh Bhuta
Partner
M.No. 135823

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2017



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date.

vi.

vii.

viii.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year by the
management., According to the information and explanation given to us no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of an examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company at the balance sheet date.

Company does not have inventory. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3{ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According te information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit
from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account and records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According te the information and explanations given t¢ us no undisputed amount payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrear as at 31t March, 2017 for a
period of more than six months from date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from any financial institution, banks, Government or debenture holders during the year.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3({viii} of the order is not applicable to the Company.




Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

xvi.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company have not paid managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in comptliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, are not applicable, Accordingly the
provision of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our apinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

NW"‘DV\’
Naresh Bhuta

Parther
M.No. 135823

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2017




ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW JAIGARH
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2017 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (The
“Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, prejections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reperting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were aperating effectively as at 315 March,
2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

fFor SHAH GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W
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M.No., 135823
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Date : May 12, 2017



JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017
CIN: U45203MH2007PTC177168

Amounts in INR

ASSEYS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 8,87,57,000 8,87,57,000 8,87,57,000
Financial Assets

Investments 3 11,00,00,000 . 11,00,00,060 11,00,00,000
Other Non-Current Assets 4 84,66,220 84,606,220 84,66,220
Total Non-Current Assets 20,72,23,220 20,72,23,220 20,72,23,220
Current Assets
Financizl Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,39,217 3,39,217 96,257

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents [ 8,68,095 8,23,920 10,73,322
Cusrent Tax Assets {Net} 11 25,82,328 - -
Other Current Assets 7 14,485 6,137 6,921
Total Current Assets 38,04,135 11,69,274 11,76,500
TOTAL ASSETS 21,10,27,355 20,83,92,494 20,83,99,720
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 8A 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Other Equity 88 10,73,91,097 10,97,67,353 11,16,92,517
Total Equity 11,73,91,097 11,97,67,353 12,16,92,517
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Lizbilities

Borrowings 9 3,40,95,763 3,09,68,785 2,81,21,157
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 11 4,82,92,778 4,92,59,014 5,01,38,931
Total Non-Current Liabilitles 8,23,88,541 8,02,27,799 7,82,60,088
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Other financiat liabilitias 10 84,27,877 83,85,382 84,47,115
Current Tax Liabilities {Net} 11 28,19,340 11,960 -
Total Current Liabllities 1,12,47,717 83,97,342 84,47,115
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,10,27,355 20,83,92,494 20,83,99,720
Significant accounting policles & key accounting estimates and judgements 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements,
As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109574W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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o s N :
NARESH BHUTA ‘1;?\, . ,gﬁ" RITESHHDESHI SUDIP MISHRA
Partner “??‘;g?é Kéﬁh‘“’ S Director Director
M.No, 135823 DM : 06793079 DIN : 03428213

Date : 12th May, 2017
Place : Mumbai




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Amounts in INR

INCOME
Other Income
Total income {1}

EXPENSES
Finance Cost
Other Expenses
Total Expenses (2)

Loss Before Tax {1-2)

Tax Expense

Current tax

Deferred tax {credit)

Loss for the Year (3}

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year {4}
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (3+4)
Earnings per equity share

(Face value of equity share of Rs. 10 each)

Basic (Rs.}
Diluted (Rs.)

Significant accounting policles & key accounting estimates and Judgements

12 53,468 87,607
53,468 87,607

13 31,26,978 28,47,628
14 26,561 26,034
31,53,539 28,73,662

{31,00,071) {27,86,055)

11 2,42,421 19,026
1u (9,66,236) {8,79,917)
{23,76,256) {19,25,164)

{23,76,256) {19,25,164)
(2.38) {1.93)

{2.38) (1.93)

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financtal statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109574W

Pt

NARESH BHUTA
Partner
M.No. 135823
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Date : 12th May, 2017
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RITES ESHI
Director
DIN : 06793079

-

SUDIP MISHRA,

DIN : 03428213



JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2017

A} EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Amountsin INR

1,00,00,000

Amounts in iNR

B} OTHER EQUITY

Amounts in INR

ontribiitiol

Baltance as at 1st April, 2016

5,31,89,072 5,65,.78,281 10,97,67,353
Loss for the year (23,76,256) - (23,76,258)
Balance as at 31st March, 2017 5,08,12,816 5,65,78,281 10,73,91,097

Balance as at 1st April, 2015

5,51,14,236 5,65,78,281 11,16,92,517
Loss for the year (19,25,164) - {19,25,164)
Balance as at 31st March, 2016 5,31,89,072 5,65,78,281 10,97,67,353

As per our attached report of even date

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109574W

o

NARESH BHUTA
Partner
M.No, 135823

Date : 12th May, 2017
Place : Miumbai
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RITESH
Director
DIN : 06793079
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SUDIP MISHRA
Director
DIN : 03428213




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Amounts in INR

fA] Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Loss hefore tax
Interest Income
Interest expenses on fair valuation of Borrowings

Operating loss before working capital changes

{Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/ {Decrease) In trade and other payables

Cash used in operating activities

Direct taxes paid {net of refunds)

Net cash used in operating actlvities [A ]

[B] Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash generated from investing activities [B]

[C] Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Interast Income
Investment in Fixed Deposit

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Net Increase in Cash and Bank Balances [A+B+C]

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(31,00,071) (27,86,055)
(45,084) {70,658
31,26,978 28,47,628
(22,177 (8,085)
{25,90,686) {6,282)
26,07,954 {61,733}
17,268 (68,015)
(4,909) (77,100)
{4,909) (77,100}
49,084 70,658
{44,175) 2,49,402
4,909 3,20,060

- 2,42,950
3,39,217 96,257
3,39,217 3,39,217

As per our attached report of even date.

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109574W

e

NARESH BHUTA
Partner
M.MNo. 135823

Director

Date : 12th May, 2017
Place : Mumbai

k,LD -

RITESH UDESHI

DIN : 06793079

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A

SUDIP MISHRA
Director
DIN : 03428213



JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
COMPANY OVERVIEW

JSW Jaigarh Infrastructure Development Private Limited is a private limited company, demiciled in India and
incorporated in under the provision of Companies Act applicable in India,

The Company is engaged in developing modern infrastructure and management Consultancy services for
logistics and ancillary activities related in support of ISW Group.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {*Act’) {to the extent notified). The Ind
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. Refer first time
adoption note for an explanation of how the transition from the previously applicable indian GAAP
{(hereinafter referred to as 'IGAAP'} to Ind AS has affected the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows.

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the
accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently over
all the periods presented in these financial statements.

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind
AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”. The transition was carried out from Indian
Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 {IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

1.2 Significant Accounting Policies
1. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property,
piant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by Management. The Company depreciates property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as prescribed under
Part C of schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for the assets mentioned below for which useful life




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

estimated by the management. The {dentified components of fixed assets are depreciated over their useful
lives and the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial
year end,

Freehold land is not depreciated and Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties
and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet
date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use
hefore such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to
property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs
and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposat or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the item is derecognized.

2. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that
they are available for use. The estimated useful lives of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number
of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as
the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are
reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

3,  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks, cheque on hand, short-term

deposits with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

4, Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

S. Leases

Assets given/taken on lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease payment/Income made under operating
leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
unless the Payments/Receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Company as lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company Is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance cost in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the assets is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognized over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Lease are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income Is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
6.  Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with accounting policies at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of asset or a fiability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participant at in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financing asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of
each reporting period.

7. Financial instruments

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Investments and other financial assets:

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

i} those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss}, and
ii) those measured at amortized cost,

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at falr value through other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Sub-sequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:
i) fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit or loss) or,
ii) amortized cost

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Company for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

MMeasured at amortized cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’)
method less impairment, if any, the amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets that are held
within a business mode! whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCH). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses,
if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses on De-recognition

In case of investment in equity instrument classified as the FVTOCI, the gains or fosses in de recognition




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

In the case of investment in debt instrument classified as the FVTQCI, the gains or losses in de
recognition are reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not classified as either
amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments

The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments at fair value. The Management
of the Company has elected to present fair value gains and losses on its investment equity instruments in
other comprehensive income, and there is no subsequent reclassification of these fair value gains and losses
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVTOC! are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOC! debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivable only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS - 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of such
receivables.

De-recognition:

A financial asset is de-recognized only when

i} The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

ii) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financia! asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not de-recognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognized to the extent of continuing invelvement in the financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

income recognition:

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
tnstrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the
expected credif losses.

. Dividends
Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
astablished, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company,
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

h} Financial llabilities

Financial liabilities:

Classification as debt or equity Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recoghition:
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specifted in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. '

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceahle right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty

8. Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present ohligation as a result of past events and it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbhursement.

Provistons (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the cbligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
o apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;
+ apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible
s a possible obligation arising from past events, when the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date.

9.  Earnings per Equity Share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for
each perlod presented.

10. Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. Current income tax [including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)] is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognize outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside
the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underline transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and established provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have heen enacted
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax
relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss are recognized in correlation to the
underiying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of Company where it is expected that
the earnings of the Company will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Company offsets current
tax assefs and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share options in excess of
compensation charged to income are credited to share premium.

11. Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on
the transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are transtated at the year-end exchange
rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair vatue in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Foreign currency borrowing is a long-term
foreign currency monetary item which is re-measured at each period end date at the exchange rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
12. Current and Non-Current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

13. Employee Benefits

Short term employee henefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related
service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Post-Employment Benefits

Payments to defined contribution schemes are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered
the service entitling them to the contribution. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
scheme is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at
each Balance Sheet date, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The parent
Company and its Indian subsidiaries operate defined contribution plans pertaining to Employee State
Insurance Scheme for all applicable employees.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination-of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and
the tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or
liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized
in other comprehensive income. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields
computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net profit in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Provident fund

Eligible employees of Company receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both
the eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a
specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.

Compensated absences
The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
ature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using projected unit credit method on the
additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entittement that has accumulated at
the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in
which the absences occur,

Stock based compensation
The compensation cost of the stock options granted to employees is calculated using the Fair value of the
stock options. The compensation expense is amortized uniformly over the vesting period of the options,

14. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of the when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

15. Other Income

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, mutual fund income, exchange gain/ loss. All debts
instrument measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate exactly discounts the estimated cash
payments or receipt over the expected life of the financial insirument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of financial liability. When
calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flow by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Mutual fund is recognized at fair
value through Profit and Loss.

16, Inventory

Consumables, construction materials and stores and spares are valued at fower of cost and net realizable
value. Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and slow/ non-moving stocks are duly provided for, Cost is
determined by the weighted average cost method.

17. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets. Borrowing costs are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset up to the date when the asset is ready for its intended use, All
other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cost that an
entity incurs in connection with the horrowing of funds. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

18. Segment Reporting

Considering the nature of business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance
with the requirements of ind As - 108 Operating Segments.
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
1.2 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
{Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’ and Ind AS 102,
‘Share-based payment.”

Amendment to ind AS 7

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure
requirement. '

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is
being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 102

The amendment to Ind AS 102 provides specific guidance for the measurement of cash-settled awards,
modification of cash-settled awards and awards that include a net settlement feature in respect of
withholding taxes.

It clarifies that the fair value of cash-settied awards is determined on a basis consistent with that used for
equity-settled awards. Market-based performance conditions and non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
‘fair values’, but non-market performance conditions and service vesting conditions are reflected in the
estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. Also, the amendment dlarifies that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled, share based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as such from the date of
modification. Further, the amendment requires the award that includes a net settlement feature in respect
of withholding taxes to be treated as equity-settled in its entirety. The cash payment to the authority is
treated as if it was part of an equity settlement.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is
being evaluated.

1.4 Key accounting estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liahilities affected in future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

_liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful lives and the expected residual value at the end of its lives. The useful lives and residual values of
Company's assets are determined by Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Taxes

The Company has tax jurisdiction at India, significant judgements are involved in determining the provision
for income taxes.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate, Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
which involve various judgements and assumptions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2017

NOTE 2:- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Amounts in INR

It
Cost
As at 1st April, 2015 {Deemed Cost) 8,87,57,000
Additions -
As at 31st March, 2016 8,87,57,000
Additions -
As at 3ist March, 2017 B,87,57,000
Net book value
As at 1st April, 2015 8,87,57,000
As at 31st March, 2016 8,87,57,000
As at 31st March, 2017 8,87,57,000

NOTE 3:- NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSE

tnvestment in Equity Instruments
Associates
Unquoted
Investment carried at Cost
South West Port Limited
110,00,000 {Previous year 110,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- fully paid

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

The company has 23.81 % Equity shares in South West Port Limited, and has a principal place of business at Goa.

NOTE 4:- NON-CURRENT ASSETS - OTHERS

Armounts In INR

Capital Advances

84,66,220

84,66,220

84,66,220

84,66,220

84,66,220

84,66,220

NOTE 5:- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks
In Current accounts with Axis Bank

Amaounts in INR

3,39,217

3,39,217

96,257

3,39,217

3,39,217

96,257

LANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks
In Term deposit with Axis Bank

Amounts in INR

8,68,085

8,23,920

10,73,322

8,68,095

8,23,920

10,73,322

R CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts in INR

Statutory and other receivables
Prepaid Expenses

14,495 5,913 6,921
- 224 .
14,495 6,137 6,921

NOTE 8A:- EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
10,00,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up

Amounts in INR

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
1,00,00,000 1,60,00,000 1,00,00,000
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2017

{a} Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

_Ameunts in INR

Shal

10,00,000

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000
Movement during the year - - - .
Balance at the end of the year 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000

Amounts in INR

1,00,00,000

10,00,600

1,00,00,000

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,00,000
Movement during the year - - - .
Balance at the end of the year 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000

{B) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of share capital, i.¢., equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitfed to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are etigible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distrihution of all preferentiat

amousits, in proportion to their shareholding,

{c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Compan
Y

in INR

JSW Infrastructure Umited 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 ' 100 " 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 100
10,00,000 1,00,00,000 100 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 100
OTHER EQUITY Amounts In INR

Balance as at 1st April, 2016
Loss for the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2017

5,65,78,281

10,97,67,353

5,31,89,072
(23,76,256) - {23,76,256)
5,08,12,816 5,65,78,281 10,73,91,097

Amounts in INR

[Balance as at 15t April, 2015 5,51,14,236 5,65,78,281 11,16,92,517
Lass for the year {19,25,164) - (19,25,164)
Balance as at 31st Maich, 2016 5,31,89,072 5,65,78,281 10,97,67,353

NOTE 9:- NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORR

Unsecured ioans
Lean from Related Party

stMarch;

nis in INR

3,40,95,763

3,09,68,785

2,81,21,157

3,40,95,763

3,09,68,785

2,81,21,157

Above loan is taken from JSW Infrastructures Limited bearing zero interest and repayable after 1st June, 2029 on demand. The company has falr valued this loan
by discounting the cash flows of barrowing at discounting rate of 9.73% p.a. which Is Interest rate based en company's risk profile.

NANCIAL LIABILITEES -OTHERS

Amounts in INR

Due to others
Due to related parties (refer Note 16}

i

12,450

11,450

33,884

84,15,427 83,73,932 84,13,231
84,27,877 83,85,382 84,47,115
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Notes to the Financizal $tatements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

NOTE 11:- INCOME TAXES

it or foss during the year

Income tax related to items charged or credi

Amountsin INR

3ist-March; 201

Current income tax / MAT liability
Tax {Credit) under Minimum Alternative Tax
Current tax [a)

Deferred Tax {credit) (b)
Total expense reported in the statement of profit and loss {a+b)

28,24,749

(25,82,328) -
242,421 19,026
{9,66,236) (8,79,917)
(7,23,815) {8,60,891)

_Income Tax expense

Amounts in INR

Reconciliation
Loss before tax
Applicable tax rate
Computed tax expense
Expense not allowed for tax purpose

MAT Credit
Mat Liablity (11518}
Mat Credit Entitlement
Current Tax

{31,00,071) (27,86,055)
30.90% 30.90%
(9,57,922) (8,60,891)
12,00,343 8,79,917
2,42,421 19,026
28,24,74% -
(25,82,328} -
2,42,421 19,026

The following table prévides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities a
31, 2016

5 of March 31, 2017 and March

Amountsin INR

Income Tax Assets 4,909 7,066
Income Tax Liabilitles 28,24,74% 19,026
{28,19,240) (11,960}

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities (Net)

Opening Balances
Deferred tax Liabilities
Tax expense / { income) during the pericd recognised in profit or loss

Closing Balances
Deferred tax Liabilities

#in
Amdunts in INR

4,92,59,014 5,01,38,931
{9,66,236) {8,79,917)
4,82,92,778 4,92,59,014

MAT Tax Credit

25,82,328

Amounts in INR

25,82,328

NOTE 12:- OTHER INCOME

Amounts in INR

interest Income
QOther Incorne

70,658

49,084
4,384 16,949
53,468 87,607




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Armounts in INR

Ay

Interest on Loan from Related Party (refer Note 16) 31,26,978 28,47,628

31,26,978 28,47,628
NOTE 14:- OTHER EXPENSES Amounts in INR

Rates & taxes 2,845

Legal, professianal & consultancy charges 10,000 -

Remuneration to auditers {refer Note 22) 13,500 16,367

General office expenses and overheads 2,216 3,877
26,561 26,034

NOTE 15 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Contingent Liabilities
There is no Contingent Liability as at 31st March, 2017,

B. Commitmenis
The company has no commitment for any contract remaining to be executed.

NOTE 16:- DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) 24 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
List of Related Parties

ISW Infrastructure Fintrade Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company

ISW Infrastructure Limited Halding Company

South West Port Limited Associate

Naveen Kumar Non-executive director

Sudip Mishra Non-executive director

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business Amounts in INR

F

JSW infrastructure Limited

Reimbursement for Expenses 41,495 30,735

Interest on Borrowings 31,26,978 28,417,628
Amount due to/from parties ) Amaounts in INR
Investmen.t in Equity Sh.ares

South West Port Limited 11,00,00,000 11,00,00,000
Others payable { for relmbursement of expenses)

JSW Infrastructure Limited 84,15,427 83,73,932
Unsecured Loan

JSW Infrastructure Limited 3,40,95,763 3,09,68,785

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

NOTE 17:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Amounts in INR
- v ak .

 Value

ng

Financial assets at amortised cost

Non Current Financials Assets- Investments 11,00,00,000 11,00,00,000 11,00,00,000 11,00,00,000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,39,217 3,39,217 3,39,217 3,39,217
Bank Balance other than cash and cash 8,68,095 8,68,095 8,23,920 8§,23,920

11,12,07,312 11,12,07,312 11,11,63,137 11,11,63,137

Financial Rabilities at fair value

Non Current fFinancials Liabilities- Borrowings 3,40,95,763 3,40,95,763 3,09,68,785 3,09,68,785

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current Financial Liabilities - Other 84,27,877 84,27 877 83,85,382 83,85,382
4,25,23,640 4,25,23,640 3,93,54,167 3,93,54,167

Above loan is taken from JSW Infrastructure Limited bearing zero interest and repayable after 1st June, 2029 on demand. This loan is fair valued at
level 3 fair value hierarchy i.e. inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable input).

For teve! 3 fair value company has discounted the cash flows of borrowing at discounting rate of 9,73% p.a. which is interest rate based on company's
risk profile.

For level 3 fair value company has discounted the cash flows of borrowing at discounting rate of 9.73% p.a, which is interest rate based on company's
risk profile.

NOTE 18:-FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus s to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.The Company has booked profit on
fair valaution of Jand as at 1st April, 2015 resulting in increase of net worth of the company. The management is optismistics of improving the cash
flows through equity infusion by way of contribution from promater'. These measures are expected to result in suitable cash flows in future.

Market risk
The Company operates only in demestic market accordingly no market risk is perceived.

Credit risk
The Company has not dealing in credit in normal course of business, hence no credit risk is perceived.

Liquidity risk
The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalent i.e. contributed by promoters. The Company has no outstanding bank
borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital Is sufficient to meet its current requirement, accordingly no Hauidity risk Is perceived.

The Company had a working capital of Rs. (74,43,583) [previous year Rs. {72,28,069)] which mainly includes payables to related parties for advances
received ,
The below table provides details regarding the ageing of significant ﬁnap;ial i

R

ilities as of 31st March, 2017 Am

Current ligbilities 28,50,375 - 83,97,342 1,12,47,717

NOTE 15:

Face value of equity share Rs. 7 10.00 10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 1000000 1000000
Loss for the year Rs. (23,76,256) {19,25,164)
Weighted average earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) Rs. (2.38} {1.93)

NOTE 20:- DISCLOSURE OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES (SBNs)
The Company does not have cash, also the Company has not transacted in specified bank notes as defined in the MCA notification G.5.R. 308 (E)
dated 30th March, 2017 from period 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016.

* NOTE 21:- SEGMENT REPORTING
Considering the nature of busi
Operating Segments, P




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

NOTE 22:- PAYMENT TO AUDITORS Amounts in INR

Statutory audit fees . ”. . o 11;450
Others - . 4,917
11,500 16,367

NOTE 23:- REALISATION VALUE OF CURRENT ASSETS
In the opinion of Management, the Current Assets comprising of Advances and other receivables, have value on realisation in the ordinary course of

business at least equal to the amount to which they are stated.
NOTE 24:- The additional information pursuant to Schedufe Il of the Companies Act, 2013 is either Nil, or not applicable.

NOTE 25:- The finacial statements are approved for issue by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 12th May, 2017 and by the Board of
Directors on 12th May, 2017.
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017
26. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company’s first Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The significant accounting
policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

The comparative information presented in these Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and in the
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 01, 2015 (date of transition of the Company). In preparing its
opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
{as amended} and other relevant provisions of the Act, (hereinafter referred to as 'IGAAP'). An explanation of how the
transition from 1GAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company is set out in the following tables and notes.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with
effect from Apri} 01, 2016, with a transition date of April 01, 2015. For all periods up to and including the year ended
March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with the previously applicable IGAAP.

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS 101). Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued and effective
for the first Ind AS Financial Statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented.
Accordingly, the Company has prepared Financial Statements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2017,
together with the comparative information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

The Company has prepared opening Ind AS balance sheet as at April 01, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS. In
preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 {as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act IGAAP. An explanation of how the transition from
1GAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is set outin
the following tables and notes:

Exemptions and exceptions Availed

In preparing these Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in
accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and IGAAP have been recognised directly in
equity {retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the
Company in restating its IGAAP Financial Statements, including the Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2015 and the Financial
Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016

Ind AS optional exemptions

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition
from previous IGAAP to Ind AS.

Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to fair value all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in
the Financial Statements as at the date of transition as its deemed cost. This exemption can also be used for intangible
assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible asset. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant
and equipment, intangible a
Frlage So
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate and jeint venture

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to measure its investment in subsidiary companies, associate companies and
joint venture companies at the date of transition, at cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27, or deemed cost,
The deemed cost of such investment shall either be it’s fair value at date of transition to Ind AS of the Company, or
IGAAP carrying amount at that date. The Company has elected to measure its investment in subsidiary companies,
associate and joint venture at IGAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the transition date.

Long-term foreign currency monetary items

Ind AS 101 provides an exemption to continue the accounting policy option of recognizing the exchange difference on
translation of such long-term foreign currency items as per IGAAP, para 46A of AS 11 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates', provided an alternative accounting treatment to companies with respect to exchange differences
arising on restatement of long term foreign currency monetary items. Exchange differences on account of depreciable
assets could be added/deducted from the cost of the depreciable asset, which would then be depreciated over the
balance life of the asset, can be continued under Ind AS for items outstanding as on March 31, 2016. The Company has
opted to apply this exemption.

" Ind AS mandatory exceptions
The Company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required
under Ind AS 101,

i) Estimates

Estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the transition date shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with IGAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at Aprit 01, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with
IGAAP. The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these
were not required under IGAAP:

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

ii} Non-controfling interests

Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of ather comprehensive income to the
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. This requirement needs to be followed even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Ind AS 101 requires the above requirement to be followed
prospectively from the date of transition.

Consequently, the Company has applied the above requirement prospectively.

iif} De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 Financial Instrument {ind
AS 109) prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows
a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of transition to
Ind AS, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities de-
recognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has et agply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition

to Ind AS.
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

iv) Classification and measurement of financial assets
ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

v) Impairment of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires guidance's for impairment as per Ind AS 109 to be applied post-transition date.

V) Share-based Payment
The Company has availed the exemption of not applying Ind AS 102 — Share-based Payment {Ind AS 102) to equity
instruments that vested before date of transition to Ind AS.

1. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

For all perfods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
together with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous GAAP’). This note explains the principal
adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP for the
following:

[. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 (Transition Date) and as at March 31, 2016
1l. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016
1i1. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2016
IV. Reconciliation of Equity as at April 1, 2015 and as at March 31, 2016




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1. Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at 01st April, 2015 and 31st March, 2016

Armounts in INR

ASSETS
{Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment B 83,73,932 8,03,83,068 8,87,57,000 83,73,932 8,03,83,068 8,87,57,000
Financial Assets

Investments 11,00,00,000 - 11,00,00,000 | 11,00,00,000 - 11,00,00,000
Other Mon-Current Assets 84,66,220 - 84,66,220 84,606,220 - 84,66,220
Total Non-Current Assets 12,68,40,152 8,03,83,068 20,72,23,220 12,68,40,152 8,03,83,068 | 20,72,23,220
Current Assets
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents D 11,69,579 (10,73,322) 96,257 11,63,137 (8,23,920) 3,39,217

Bank Balance other than

cash and cash equivalents D - 10,73,322 10,73,322 8,23,920 8,23,920
Other Current Assets 6,921 - 6,921 6,137 - 6,137
Total Current Assets 11,76,500 - 11,76,500 11,69,274 - 11,69,274
TOTAL ASSETS 12,80,16,652 8,03,83,068 20,83,99,720 12,80,09,426 8,03,83,068 | 20,83,92,494
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 1,00,00,000 - 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 - 1,00,00,000
Other Equity B,CE&F {4,30,463} 11,21,22,980 11,16,92,517 {3,87,916) 11,01,55,269 | 10,97,67,353
Total Equity 95,69,537 11,21,22,980 12,16,92,517 96,12,084 11,01,55,269 | 11,97,67,353
Liabllities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financia Liabilities

Borrowings E&F 11,00,00,000 {8,18,78,843) 2,81,21,157 | 11,00,00,000 (7,80,31,215})| 3,09,68,785
Deferred Tax Liabllities [ - 5,01,38,931 5,01,38,931 - 4,92,59,014 4,92,59,014
Total Non-Current Liabilitles 11,00,00,000 (3,17,39,912) 7,82,60,088 | 11,00,00,000 {2,97,72,201)| 8,02,27,799
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Other Financlal Lighilities 84,47,115 - 84,47,115 83,85,382 - 83,85,382
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - - - 11,960 - 11,960
Total Current Liabilities 84,47,115 - 84,47,115 83,97,342 - 83,97,342
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,80,16,652 $,03,83,068 2(,83,99,720 | 12,80,09,426 8,03,83,068 | 20,83,92,494
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JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1. Reconciliation of Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amounts in INR

INCOME
Other Income
Total Income (i}

EXPENSES

Finance Cost

Other Expenses

Total Expenses (2)

Profit {Loss) before Tax (1-2}
Tax Expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit (Loss) for the Year {3)

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (4)

Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year (3+4)

E&F

87,607 - 87,607
87,607 . 87,607

y 28,47,628 28,47,628
26,034 - 26,034
26,034 28,47,628 28,73,662
61,573 {28,47,628) {27,86,055)
19,026 - 19,026

- (8,79,917) (8,79,917)
42,547 {19,67,711) (19,25,164)
42,547 (19,67,711) {19,25,164)

Il Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amounts in INR

Profit after tax as reportéd un.der. prevto.us lndla-n GAAP 42,547

impact on amortisation of Borrowings E (28,47,628)

Deferred Taxes C 8,79,917

Net Profit after tax under IND AS (19,25,164)
IV. Reconciliation of equity as at 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015

Amounts in INR

Equity as per previous Indian GAAP (1)
impact on amortisation of Borrowings
Impact of fair valuation of Freehold Land
Deferred Taxes

Total Effect of transition to Ind AS (2)
Equity as per Ind AS (1+2)

95,69,537 96,12,084
8,18,78,843 7,90,31,215
8,03,83,068 8,03,83,068

{5,01,38,931) {4,92,59,014)
11,21,22,980 11,01,55,269
12,16,92,517 11,97,67,353




JSW JAIGARH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

The following explains the material adjustments made while transition from IGAAP to IND AS:

A. To comply with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, certain account balances have been
regrouped as per the format prescribed under Division Il of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013, which have
not been disclosed under adjustment column.

B. Property, Plant & Equipment

Under the IGAAP, Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are recorded at carrying cost. Under IND
AS, Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are recognized at fair value on the date of transition as
deemed cost. Difference between fair value of Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets as at the
date of transition and the carrying value as per IGAAP has been recognized under retained earnings (net of tax).

C. Deferred tax

IGAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the pertod. ‘Ind AS 12 Income Taxes’ requires entities to account for deferred
taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an
asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of ‘Ind AS 12 Income Taxes’ approach has
resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under IGAAP. In
addition, the various transitional adjustmentslead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the
Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

D. Statement of cash flows

The Ind AS adjusiments are either non cash adjustments or are regrouping among the cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities. Consequently, Ind AS adoption has no impact on the net cash flow for the year ended
31st March, 2016 as compared with the IGAAP, except investment in mutual fund disclosed under cash and cash
equivalent under IGAAP now disclosed under investments.

E. Interest free loan
In the financial statements prepared under IGAAP, the carrying value of Interest free loan was recognized at the
principal amounts payable by the borrower. Under Ind AS, Interest free borrowing being a financial liability is required
to be recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The difference between such fair value and the carrying value is recognized as deferred income disclosed
under Cther liabilities.

F. loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR} method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

G. Retained earnings as at April 1, 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the ahove Ind AS transition adjustments.
H.  Financial assets and financial liabilities have been regrouped wherever required to comply with Ind AS.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Faor Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109574W
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